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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Welcome to today's

          3  Hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu. I have the

          5  privilege of chairing this Committee.  We've

          6  convened for the purpose of hearing testimony on two

          7  bills intended to improve safety for pedestrians and

          8  drivers.

          9                 Intro No. 12, sponsored by Council

         10  Member Tony Avella would require DOT to keep a

         11  record of missing or damaged stop signs and to

         12  repair, replace or make a determination that such

         13  stop sign does not need repair or replacement within

         14  48 hours.

         15                 Intro No. 581, sponsored by Council

         16  Member Joseph Addabbo, would require the DOT to

         17  maintain a log of missing, damaged or illegible

         18  priority regulatory signs defined as stop, yield,

         19  one-way, do not enter, evacuation route, and school

         20  zone signs, and to repair, replace, or make a

         21  determination that the priority regulatory sign does

         22  not need repair or replacement within 48 hours.

         23                 Keeping New Yorkers who use City

         24  sidewalks and streets safe is one of the top

         25  missions of the DOT.  In fact, the 2007 Mayor's
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          2  Management Report lists as the Department of

          3  Transportation's first key public service area as

          4  that of ensuring the safety of motorists,

          5  pedestrians and bicyclists traveling in New York

          6  City.

          7                 The term "priority regulatory sign"

          8  does not appear to have an official definition, but

          9  in past Mayor's Management Reports have included

         10  stop signs, yield signs, one- way signs and do not

         11  enter signs.

         12                 The standard used by the

         13  Administration to measure its performance with

         14  regard to priority and regulatory signs is nine

         15  days, or 216 hours.  The Mayor's Management Report

         16  touts that DOT repairs or replacements is 100

         17  percent of priority regulatory signs within nine

         18  days after it receives notification.  Something's

         19  wrong though when DOT classifies these signs as

         20  priority signs, meaning that they are very

         21  important, but then uses a nine- day repair

         22  standard.  These signs are priority regulatory signs

         23  because without them pedestrians or drivers may be

         24  injured or even killed. Obviously, we need to do

         25  more to ensure priority regulatory signs are fixed

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  or replaced in a shorter time span than nine days.

          3                 I would like to invite the sponsor of

          4  Intro 12, Council Member Tony Avella, to make an

          5  opening statement.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Before I get

          7  into my opening statement, I'd like to submit some

          8  letters of support for Intro 12, one from the South

          9  Canarsie Civic Association, one from Community Board

         10  11 in Queens, and from the Olinville Taxpayers and

         11  Civic Association in the Bronx if they can be

         12  entered into the record.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         14  Member Avella.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  This bill

         16  would require the Department of Transportation Intro

         17  12 to replace missing or damaged stop signs within

         18  48 hours of notice to the Department that they have

         19  been damaged.

         20                 Unfortunately, this important safety

         21  legislation has been pending in this Committee for

         22  almost five years.  I first introduced this bill in

         23  September of 2002 and again in 2004 and 2006

         24  sessions.  Finally, last June an initial hearing was

         25  held in this Committee at which time the Department
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          2  of Transportation testified that in Fiscal Year 2006

          3  almost 79 percent of stop signs were repaired or

          4  replaced before the end of the third day, following

          5  notification, and almost 99 percent were completed

          6  within six days.

          7                 However, on numerous occasions within

          8  my own district I have personally witnessed stop

          9  signs that had been destroyed or damaged and were

         10  not repaired for more than 10 days, and in few

         11  instances for almost two weeks.  In fact, if you

         12  call 311 or the agency, you will be told the

         13  official time line is 10 days, and in fact, if you

         14  call 311, my staff has been told 14 days.

         15                 While I understand the financial

         16  constraints on the Department, this lengthy response

         17  time creates an extremely hazardous condition.

         18  Furthermore, in addition to the substantial risk of

         19  danger to motorists, there is a significant increase

         20  in potential liability to the City for failure to

         21  repair damaged signs that the City has knowledge of

         22  and of which are found to be a contributing cause in

         23  motor vehicle accidents.

         24                 As I have stated in the past, it is

         25  unacceptable that the Department of Transportation
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          2  cannot repair these signs within a 48 hour period

          3  following notice that such situation exists.  Any

          4  cost benefit analysis between budgetary concerns and

          5  the potential danger to motorists and potential

          6  liability to the City clearly falls on the side of

          7  requiring the Department of Transportation to

          8  achieve this 48- hour period.

          9                 Following the June, 2006 hearing, I

         10  indicated to Council staff that I was willing to

         11  reach out to the Administration to reach an

         12  agreement, and if this was not possible, I wanted to

         13  move ahead on this bill to a final hearing and vote.

         14                 After seven months of no response to

         15  my request, I filed a sponsor's privilege request

         16  pursuant to 7- 100 of the Rules of the City Council,

         17  requesting that the Committee hear the bill and that

         18  a vote be taken thereon.  Intro 12 is on today's

         19  agenda as a result of that request.

         20                 Unfortunately, I've had the

         21  opportunity, and I've had to use that sponsor's

         22  privilege request for a number of bills that have

         23  been pending in the City Council that I introduced.

         24  Due to, in my opinion, sheer politics, some of those

         25  pieces of legislation have not moved ahead.  In
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          2  response to initiating the sponsor's privilege, it

          3  would seem that the Speaker and other people within

          4  the City Council and unfortunately some of my

          5  colleagues, decided to go along with a Speaker's

          6  request to introduce almost identical bills in order

          7  to either confuse the situation or, if necessary,

          8  pass that legislation out with somebody else's name

          9  on it.

         10                 This is politics as usual.  It is an

         11  absolute disgrace that the City Council would do

         12  this.  To some of my colleagues' credit, two

         13  Committee Chairs refused to do this. Unfortunately,

         14  the companion bill that's on today's agenda has been

         15  introduced by some of my colleagues.  I find the

         16  process extremely shameful and disgraceful that the

         17  legislative process can be so distorted by sheer

         18  politics, and that's all this is.  To introduce a

         19  companion bill that basically says exactly the same

         20  thing, just makes some minor changes for sheer

         21  political agenda, or perhaps the Speaker has a

         22  grudge against me, whether it's because I fought her

         23  on the pay raise or the Lulu's or perhaps it's

         24  because we're both running for the same position of

         25  Mayor, this should not happen in this body.
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          2                 Anybody who signs their name to this,

          3  participates in this practice.  It is a disgrace.

          4  Again, I appreciate that two Committee Chairs

          5  refused to do the same thing in other Committees. It

          6  is just a shame that this Committee is going along

          7  with this. Apparently, some of my colleagues and the

          8  Speaker have a very different opinion of what

          9  government is all about and what good government is

         10  all about.

         11                 Having said all of that, I intend to

         12  push for a vote on my bill, and let the Members of

         13  this Committee and this Council put their name to

         14  the bill or not, or have them put their name or not

         15  to the other bill.  For the record, and I will say

         16  this on the Council floor when the time comes, if it

         17  can happen to me, it can happen to anybody on this

         18  Council.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         20  Member Avella. I certainly, as Chair of this

         21  Committee, will note that you are a very special

         22  member.  Council Member Addabbo, for opening remarks

         23  on Intro 581.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chair.  In all due respect to my
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          2  colleague, Council Member Avella, who I appreciate

          3  the work that he's done in Intro 12, I'm not going

          4  to get involved in the personal, possibly founded

          5  personal issues that he may have.  I'm going to talk

          6  about the merits of Intro 581, which I think, as a

          7  sponsor of both bills, a sponsor of the Avella bill

          8  as well, I just think that we have a duty to work

          9  with the Department of Transportation in making sure

         10  that our streets and roadways are safe.

         11                 This bill, Intro 581, would obviously

         12  expedite the manner in which signs are replaced.

         13  It's not just stop signs. It's one- way signs, it's

         14  yield signs, do not enter signs, school zone signs.

         15  I think this is all good public policy that Intro

         16  581 seeks to do, and I'm hopeful that we can work

         17  with the Administration and our colleagues to that

         18  end, for the fact that we are trying to make our

         19  roadways safer for the residents of this City, and

         20  I'm hopeful that politics and personalities do not

         21  get in the way.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         23  Member Addabbo. We're now pleased to ask our

         24  officials from the Department of Transportation.  My

         25  two favorite Deputy Commissioners from the DOT at
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          2  the City level.  While they're having a seat, let me

          3  introduce members who are here with us.  Council

          4  Member Larry Seabrook, who has a simultaneous

          5  hearing next door, Council Member Vincent Ignizio

          6  from Staten Island, Council Member Joseph Addabbo

          7  from Queens and Council Member Tony Avella from

          8  Queens.  Deputy Commissioners, please proceed.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Good

         10  afternoon, Mr. Chair.  Thank you for that

         11  introduction.  Once again, good afternoon.  My name

         12  is Michael Primeggia.  I'm the Deputy Commissioner

         13  for Traffic Operations in the New York City

         14  Department of Transportation.  Joining me today is

         15  David Woloch, our Deputy Commissioner for External

         16  Affairs.  We want to thank you for inviting us here

         17  today to discuss both Intros 12 and 581.

         18                 Intro 12 would require DOT to replace

         19  or repair stop signs or to make a determination that

         20  no repair or replacement is required within 48 hours

         21  of receiving notice, as well as to maintain a stop

         22  sign database.  The bill also mandates that where a

         23  determination is made that a replacement or repair

         24  is not required, DOT shall immediately notify the

         25  complainant in writing of that determination.
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          2                 Intro 581 broadens the scope of signs

          3  to be repaired or replaced to include all priority

          4  regulatory signs defined by this bill as including

          5  stop signs as well as one- way, yield, do not enter,

          6  evacuation route and school zone signs.

          7                 As we know, the street signage that

          8  DOT maintains in the City of New York is vast.

          9  There are currently 1.3 million signs, including

         10  everything from stop signs to parking signs to

         11  street name signs.  DOT operates crews of between

         12  four and ten people in each borough that are

         13  responsible for maintaining all of the signage.

         14                 Of the 1.3 million signs, there are

         15  139,922 of what we call life protecting devices

         16  located citywide.  Our definition of life protecting

         17  devices differs from the Council's definition of

         18  priority regulatory signs in Intro 581 in that it

         19  does not include coastal evacuation and school zone

         20  signs.  While we recognize that these signs are

         21  certainly important, they are what we term

         22  cautionary or way finding as opposed to regulatory

         23  signage. Regulatory signs serve a particular

         24  function alerting drivers to regulations specific to

         25  that location.
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          2                 Currently, we complete the vast

          3  majority of repairs or replacement to life

          4  protecting devices within three business days of

          5  receiving notification.  In fact, in Fiscal Year

          6  2007, 61 percent of these signs were repaired or

          7  replaced before the end of the third day following

          8  notification.  This covers a range between 58

          9  percent of all yield signs and 64 percent of all do

         10  not enter signs entered into that period.

         11  Additionally, 99 percent were completed within six

         12  business days.

         13                 While we believe our current record

         14  is a good one, given our resources in the vast

         15  universe of life protecting devices posted across

         16  the City, we find that the Council's goal to further

         17  minimize response times laudable.  However,

         18  mandating a 48- hour turnaround as proposed in Intro

         19  12 and 581, would adversely affect DOT's overall

         20  traffic safety operations.

         21                 Currently, sign repair and

         22  replacement operations are bundled together largely

         23  for geographic reasons to maximize efficiency.  If a

         24  sign in need of repair is located far away from a

         25  cluster of locations that are also in need of
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          2  repair, we will first send the crews to the area

          3  where it can do the most work in the least amount of

          4  time.  Being under legal obligation to repair such a

          5  large universe in signs in such a brief time frame

          6  would impair the efficiency of our entire operation.

          7                 The inefficiency that would result

          8  from a 48- hour turnaround time would also have

          9  significant financial implications. We estimate that

         10  the additional cost to DOT would be approximately $2

         11  million annually.  In addition to staffing increases

         12  and administrative costs, a 48- hour mandate would

         13  require a significant amount of overtime related to

         14  weekends and holidays.  We would have to ensure that

         15  crews, supervisors, and technical staff be available

         16  seven days a week to replace or repair signs.

         17                 In Fiscal Year 2007, 8023 signs were

         18  repaired. Presumably, a required 48- hour turnaround

         19  time would not increase the number of signs in need

         20  of repair, but would require additional staff to be

         21  made available on weekends and holidays incurring

         22  significant costs while actually lessening the

         23  productivity of the overall operations.

         24                 Ideally, we would like to repair

         25  everything from signage to pot holes immediately
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          2  after they are reported.  But as the Council

          3  appreciates, we are bound by fiscal constraints

          4  which require us to prioritize our efforts where the

          5  safety imperative is the greatest.  That said,

          6  however, I believe we can take steps to achieve our

          7  shared goal, focusing on where safety concerns is

          8  the most imperative, while at the same time

          9  recognizing the need for us to use our limited

         10  resources effectively.

         11                 We are exploring the possibility of

         12  repairing or replacing stop, do not enter and yield

         13  signs within four business days.  We are currently

         14  in discussions with the Office of Management and

         15  Budget and the Mayor's Office on this proposal, but

         16  this would ensure a quick turnaround time for the

         17  safety signs that matter most.

         18                 Additionally, we would need to

         19  consider the fiscal implications of these bills and

         20  any proposal, as without a means for providing for

         21  the additional resources required to comply, the

         22  installation, repair or replacement of other types

         23  of signage would all fall to the wayside as we

         24  concentrated solely on these signs.

         25                 We have excluded one- way signs from
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          2  this proposal, as they differ from the other three

          3  life protecting devices identified.  In addition to

          4  the fact that frequently more than one one- way

          5  arrow exists at any given approach, there are other

          6  indications that a street is a one- way even absent

          7  a sign.  The direction cars are parked is a clear

          8  indication of the direction vehicles should travel.

          9  Currently, we have a high response rate for one- way

         10  sign installation, as 97 percent are repaired within

         11  six business days.

         12                 Additionally, we would be interested

         13  in incorporating into the bill our process for

         14  tracking and responding to notices of damaged or

         15  missing signs.  The logging and notification

         16  requirements in Intros 12 and 581 are redundant and

         17  conflict with the procedure which is used uniformly

         18  throughout the City.

         19                 In sum, we are confident that we can

         20  work with the Council to address their concerns and

         21  maximize public safety while giving DOT the required

         22  flexibility to conduct our operations in the most

         23  effective and efficient manner.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  testify before you today, and we would be happy to
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          2  answer any questions you may at this time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          4  much, Deputy Commissioner.  I appreciate your

          5  testimony, but this is very similar to other

          6  testimony that the DOT provides.  It's almost like

          7  it's cookie cutter testimony where you're first

          8  going to lauding the Committee on how you agree with

          9  the intent of our bill but you disagree with the

         10  approach.  And then you talk about how there are

         11  financial implications of this bill that would then

         12  divert the resources of the DOT from other things

         13  that have to be done.              Obviously, the

         14  Council has put forth this legislation because we

         15  don't agree with the standard that is currently

         16  being applied here.  In the DOT's own words, we're

         17  talking about life protecting devices at the very

         18  minimum.  Even if you wanted to change the

         19  definition away from what we term as priority

         20  regulatory signage.  Life protecting devices, and

         21  yet a week can elapse before some of these life

         22  protecting devices are replaced or repaired.

         23                 So as Chairman of the Committee, I

         24  certainly appreciate your testimony, but it's the

         25  same old story about how the DOT doesn't have enough
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          2  money to do this.  So at budget time we certainly

          3  are open to hearing testimony from the Department

          4  that it requires an increase in the budget to

          5  satisfy the obligations and the responsibilities of

          6  the Department, but it's time and time again that

          7  the DOT appears before this Committee to say that

          8  they disagree with an important life protecting bill

          9  for fiscal reasons.

         10                 I'll have more questions later, but

         11  I'll allow my colleagues and sponsors of the bills

         12  to ask questions.  Council Member Avella?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.  A

         14  couple of things.  We repair traffic signals within

         15  24 hours, correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  It

         17  depends on the type of repair being made.  It varies

         18  from two hours to 48 hours.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Why is that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well,

         21  let me just step back because I think it's going to

         22  require a broader answer. We contract that service.

         23  We pay approximately 24 or $5 million a year for

         24  that service.  We do it because a traffic signal is

         25  the highest level of control that you have at an
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          2  intersection, and the level of repair differs

          3  depending on the type of condition.

          4                 So while we have a two to a 48 hour

          5  standard, a simply lamping out, one of several lamps

          6  at an intersection, has the lowest response, 48

          7  hours.  An intersection that is completely dark, for

          8  whatever reason, it could be the power is out, or it

          9  could be that there's a damage to the intersection

         10  that has destabilized the equipment, that gets a

         11  two- hour repair response to make the intersection

         12  either safe or repair in that two hours because

         13  without that control there is no other control at

         14  the intersection.

         15                 Not so with the stop sign, for

         16  example.  Most of the stop sign locations in New

         17  York have multiple displays.  I said most of them.

         18  There are 46,000 intersections.  I'm sorry, there

         19  are 36,000 intersections in the City of New York.

         20  Only 12,000 of them are signalized.  The other

         21  24,000 are controlled with one or both of the

         22  approaches having a stop control.  We have about 18

         23  or 1,900 locations where both directions are

         24  controlled by a stop, and then the other 22,000 or

         25  so, the minor is stopped and the major is not.  In
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          2  most of those cases where the approaching street

          3  that's stopped is a one- way street, they'll be two

          4  stop signs at that intersection.  It's only when the

          5  approaching location is a two- way street where you

          6  might only have one stop sign that's indicated.

          7                 So at most of the locations, because

          8  most of our streets are one- way, I will recognize

          9  that in eastern Queens, Council Member, where you're

         10  located, many of your streets are two way, and

         11  probably that percentage is a little bit different.

         12  But still, most of our streets in New York City are

         13  one- way and therefore have at least two signs

         14  controlling that approach when it's stop controlled.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  When you say

         16  two signs controlling the approach, two different

         17  directions though?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No,

         19  I'm talking about in the one direction.  On the one-

         20  way street, our standard installation of stop signs

         21  on a one- way street is to put one in either side of

         22  the street.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I have to

         24  tell you that I've seen that in some locations, but

         25  that's not common practice.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well,

          3  I will say that that's common practice on one- way

          4  streets.  As I mentioned on two- way streets, it is

          5  not.  In addition, where we have visibility

          6  problems, again, residential communities with a lot

          7  of trees where we have visibility problems, you'll

          8  often in advance of the intersection, you'll have a

          9  stop ahead sign, one or more.  At all multi- way

         10  stop locations, where both directions are

         11  approached, our standard installation, has been for

         12  a dozen years or so, is stop aheads, board messages

         13  on the pavement, all way plates on the stop sign.

         14                 So what happens is, as a result of

         15  all of these techniques we use, there are many

         16  indications that a stop may be at that location.

         17  More than one sign, a stop ahead, and word messages

         18  on the pavement.  Now, not every intersection has

         19  that treatment, I'll grant you that.  And so we

         20  believe there are some locations where if the only

         21  stop sign that was posted in that direction was

         22  missing, where we believe the response time should

         23  be enhanced and, in fact, at those locations, as you

         24  mentioned in your opening testimony, some 79 percent

         25  of the stop signs are replaced within three days.
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          2                 Our standard of replacing these signs

          3  in nine business days is to get 100 percent done.

          4  What takes so long, as I mentioned in my testimony,

          5  is just the geographic distances. Some of our

          6  boroughs are very large, and we have one facility

          7  that services that borough.  So to get 100 percent

          8  in nine days, we get 79 percent of stop signs in

          9  three business days from notification.            As

         10  I mentioned elsewhere in the testimony, the other

         11  types of priority regulatory signs, and what we call

         12  that, and what we referred to in the testimony as

         13  life protecting signs, within three days we get 61

         14  or 69 percent of them done, depending on the type.

         15                 So we believe our record is good, and

         16  that's why we have different standards and why we

         17  attempt to do it.  And where we believe that for

         18  certain types of signs, we believe that maybe 100

         19  percent should be done quicker than nine days.

         20  Certainly, a Is indicated in the testimony, are

         21  willing to do that.

         22                 Getting back to your original

         23  question --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  You

         25  anticipated my second question.  You didn't even
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          2  give me a chance to answer it.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well,

          4  I'm trying to be as open and honest with the

          5  Committee, so the Chairman will recognize that it's

          6  not just the same old testimony.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I would

          8  respectfully disagree with your testimony that when

          9  the stop sign is missing, you don't see that there's

         10  any control, as opposed to a traffic light you can

         11  see it's out because you see the mechanism there.

         12  So I would respectfully disagree because I've seen a

         13  lot of locations one- way where there's only one

         14  stop sign, and it's not on either side.

         15                 But I want to bring up two other

         16  things, two quick points.  One, I alluded to

         17  previous testimony on this bill where it was

         18  mentioned by your agency, and maybe it was you, that

         19  in 2006, 79 percent of the stop signs were repaired

         20  or replaced before the end of the third day, but in

         21  your testimony today that's dropped down to 61

         22  percent.  So it's very interesting that your own

         23  testimony from one hearing to the next has dropped

         24  dramatically.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Well,
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          2  as I was implying in my answer to your last

          3  question, the difference is when we just look at

          4  stop signs, the number is 79 percent, this year and

          5  last year, the testimony from last year and this

          6  year's testimony. That number goes down when you add

          7  the much larger universe of 123,000 life protecting

          8  devices.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Oh, I see.

         10  Now has the agency ever taken into account what's

         11  the fiscal risk in that delay?  Has there ever been

         12  an analysis of how much the agency has paid out in

         13  liability because of we notified, the City is

         14  notified that there's a missing stop sign, and then

         15  there's an accident within a couple of days?  I

         16  mean, I think that would be something that the

         17  agency should do because I think you're going to

         18  find that the cost of that liability, irrespective

         19  of the damage to human life, would offset the

         20  increased costs of doing the additional time, of

         21  hiring those additional staff.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  To

         23  the best of my knowledge that analysis has not been

         24  done.  However, I do know of at least one court case

         25  that was brought several years ago where it was
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          2  alleged that the accident contributing cause was the

          3  absence of a sign.  In that case, the court found

          4  that the Department's procedures for replacing the

          5  signs was adequate and protected the City against

          6  extraordinary liability.  I will grant you that's an

          7  anecdotal and just only one case, but that's the

          8  only one that I have knowledge of, but I do not know

          9  the answer to your larger question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Is it

         11  possible to get some information on that?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: We'll

         13  check with the Law Department and see if they have

         14  such data.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  In fact, if

         16  you could give us the name of that case that you

         17  also alluded to.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I'll

         19  get that from the Law Department as well.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.

         21  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Council

         23  Member Addabbo?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair. Commissioner, good to see you both.
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          2  Thank you for your efforts, as well.  I never like

          3  to give much credence to the argument that cost

          4  should outweigh what is the benefits of these bills,

          5  especially the safety of the residents, so I'd like

          6  to work on how we can minimize the cost if that is

          7  going to be one of the major hurdles if we should

          8  implement these bills.

          9                 Commissioner, in your testimony a

         10  number of times you had mentioned weekends and

         11  holidays and the cost of, again, the personnel for

         12  weekends and holidays in, I guess, complying with

         13  the 48 hours.  If we were to say instead of 48

         14  hours, two business days, which would obviously

         15  eliminate weekends and holidays, would that

         16  minimize, to an extent, some of the cost?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Yes,

         18  it would minimize the cost.  There would obviously

         19  be increased costs associated with it, but there is

         20  a large percentage of our additional cost is because

         21  of having to respond in the 48 hours, as opposed to

         22  two business days.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Again, you

         24  mentioned multiple times about weekends and

         25  holidays.  That's something that possibly we could
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          2  work on subsequent to this hearing that, again,

          3  we're still looking to do it in a fixed period of

          4  time, or a shortened period of time, but if it's not

          5  48 hours because that greatly increases the cost,

          6  maybe two business days is something that we could

          7  possibly negotiate, so I look forward to possibly

          8  working with you on that as well.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  And,

         10  Councilman, if I could just point out, Deputy

         11  Commissioner Primeggia's testimony, he alluded to a

         12  proposal that's under consideration by the

         13  Department that references four business days.  As

         14  opposed to when we were here a year ago, almost to

         15  this date, we have, in fact, in response to the

         16  Chair's point earlier, we have, in fact, put forward

         17  a proposal here that's under discussion to do

         18  business differently than we have in the past.  So

         19  this is not the same old testimony you've heard

         20  before.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Right, I

         22  mean, the Commissioner made it clear that there has

         23  been advances made and obviously some success in

         24  shortening the time, especially with certain

         25  signage, and that's moving in the right direction.
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          2  I think these bills go a little further as well, but

          3  that's, again, part of the negotiation that I look

          4  forward to after this hearing.  I think that's

          5  something that we could work on together, so I look

          6  forward to doing that.  Again, we are moving in the

          7  right direction.  Thank you, Commissioner.  Thank

          8  you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         10  Member Addabbo. Questions from Council Member

         11  Garodnick.  And let me note that we've been joined

         12  by Council Member Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan,

         13  Council Member Jessica Lappin from Manhattan,

         14  Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx and

         15  Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Queens.

         16    Council Member Garodnick?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman, and good morning to you both.  I think

         19  that at the end of the day we all probably share the

         20  same goals of trying to get these signs repaired as

         21  quickly as possible, and the questioning here, of

         22  course, is how exactly to do that.  What resources

         23  are necessary and how to accomplish the goal, so my

         24  questions here are more just points of clarification

         25  for myself.
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          2                 One of the issues that I had was, I

          3  understand there's a difference between the

          4  definition in Intro 581 of high priority signage.

          5  The Council legislation includes both evacuation

          6  routes and school zones, and under your definition

          7  those would not ordinarily be included in the same

          8  category, is that right?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         10  That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And in

         12  terms of the number of those signs which are

         13  actually replaced, repaired within three days, there

         14  was some disparity between 79 percent and 61

         15  percent.  I saw in your testimony that you said 61

         16  percent of those, the ones that fall into your

         17  category, which doesn't include coastal evacuations

         18  and school zones, 61 percent were repaired within

         19  three days, is that right?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I

         21  apologize.  Yes, when we look at the broader, what

         22  we termed in our testimony life protecting devices.

         23  What Councilman Avella and I were referring to was

         24  testimony last year where we simply talked about

         25  stop signs being repaired, and last year 79 percent
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          2  of the stop signs, just looking at that universe,

          3  were repaired within three business days.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I see, so

          5  stop signs 79 percent and all life protecting, is

          6  that what it was called?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Yes,

          8  including the other categories.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Life

         10  protecting devices you were at 61 percent, which is

         11  broader.  That's the broader category.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         13  Correct.  Those numbers that are referred to, the 79

         14  percent we referred to last year was for stop signs

         15  last year, but the numbers we were referring to this

         16  year in the testimony for the overall universe were

         17  for the repairs to all three or four of those sign

         18  categories.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         20  we're not necessarily comparing apples to apples in

         21  that, but where are we then in terms of stop signs

         22  this year?  So we were at 79 percent within three

         23  days last year, where are we this year on stop

         24  signs?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I
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          2  need to get back to you with that number is on stop

          3  signs for Fiscal '07.  As David was telling me, as

          4  you were asking your question, again, those numbers

          5  reflect the total number of signs.  The repairs

          6  obviously are the total number of signs, and so what

          7  we would be able to provide you is the percentage

          8  repaired and the total number of requests that came

          9  in, both last year and this year for stop signs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, we

         11  definitely would be interested in that information.

         12  Also, Intro 581 requires that there be a log

         13  maintained with certain information about the date

         14  that a notice was received, the name or identifying

         15  information of the person providing the notice and

         16  the date on which the sign was actually repaired or

         17  replaced or determined not to need attention. I

         18  don't remember seeing, maybe I missed it in your

         19  testimony, did you have a specific objection to that

         20  provision of this legislation?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  In

         22  our testimony, we have a different process of

         23  tracking and responding to notices of damage or

         24  missing signs, and that conflicts with the

         25  requirements in these two Intros, and we would be
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          2  interested in reconciling that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, but

          4  you do keep track of the date, is that right?  The

          5  date the notice was received?  I assume you have to.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

          7  have a sign management system that tracks the

          8  information as it comes in, and as a repair order is

          9  prepared and then completed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         11  presumably that includes the date in which you got

         12  notice, you're able to tell us by what percentage

         13  that you can get in three or six?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         15  Exactly, that's how I know that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         17  that you have. And then the name or identifying

         18  information of the person, that is also in your

         19  system?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We often

         21  do not have that.  A lot of the issues that are

         22  brought to our attention are coming into 311 where

         23  often people will not leave their name. They'll be

         24  given a number that they can then check on the

         25  status of it.  So the reality is that for many of
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          2  the complaints we're getting, we don't necessarily

          3  have a name.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Does 311

          5  provide that to you if they actually received it?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Do they?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Do they

          8  provide the information of the name of the person

          9  making the complaints?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I

         11  would have to get back to you.  I'm not sure about

         12  the name of the complainant, but any information

         13  about the sign, obviously they're forwarding to us.

         14  Certainly, if we get a letter about a traffic

         15  control device, we'll respond to every piece of

         16  correspondence.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Right, I

         18  guess what I'm really thinking about, and I think

         19  that this provision of the bill is addressing

         20  perhaps a frustration of people who make a complaint

         21  and then they don't hear one way or another.  They

         22  see it not fixed, or there's a determination made by

         23  DOT, but they may not know exactly that a

         24  determination was made, or they feel that perhaps

         25  just the problem was not attended to in one way or
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          2  another, where you all might have just said, you

          3  know, we never needed that sign to begin with, and

          4  we're not going to put another one back up, or

          5  whatever the determination is.  I think that as the

          6  discussions continue on this subject, a way to be

          7  responsive to the people who are actually making

          8  those complaints and to follow up with them and make

          9  sure that's part of whatever the ultimate apparatus

         10  is here, I think is an important element.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  I

         12  think as with the rest of the bill it's something

         13  we're happy to discuss.  I think the main point is

         14  that we want any language to be reflective of the

         15  systems that are in place now, particularly 311 and

         16  the way it works.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Explain

         18  what you just said to me one more time.  You want

         19  the system to be reflective of 311?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         21  Essentially, we have a system in place that does

         22  this, so I think that we would want to make sure

         23  that, again, I think the way it's framed now it's

         24  requiring that we respond, and in many cases there's

         25  nobody to necessarily respond to.  So I think we're
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          2  basically including this now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Nobody

          4  expects you to find somebody who does not leave

          5  their name, but I guess the point that I'm making is

          6  where there is that information, and people want to

          7  know that their inquiry was received and

          8  acknowledged and even dealt with in some cases, that

          9  they have some sort of a response to that.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         11  Certainly any inquiries to the Department we respond

         12  to.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And the

         14  last thing I really just wanted to, I was going to

         15  make the point, and Councilman Avella made the point

         16  already about the notice and legal liability

         17  questions because I think that really is a question

         18  here when you talk about the Department being on

         19  notice of a broken or destroyed in one way or

         20  another sign, that is a life protecting device or

         21  high priority sign or whatever you want to call it,

         22  where there is ultimately an accident or an

         23  unfortunate other circumstance as to what sort of

         24  liability that could potentially create or has

         25  created for the City in the past because when we

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  talk about the resources necessary to accomplish

          3  this, maybe we should just be investing resources

          4  into being able to respond more quickly rather than

          5  paying out legal claims on the backside.  I have no

          6  idea what the dollar amounts are of those claims,

          7  and when you do reach out to the Law Department, I

          8  would be interested in knowing the answer to that as

          9  well.  So thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         11  much, Council Member Garodnick.  Again, Deputy

         12  Commissioners, we look forward to working with you.

         13  I understand that you come to the Committee at

         14  pretty much every hearing to say that you're happy

         15  with the Department of Transportation's performance

         16  on this and other issues.

         17                 The reason why we bring this

         18  legislation forth, is because our constituents are

         19  not happy with that performance.  So hopefully

         20  somehow we can find some common ground and know that

         21  your stated intent is that you want to improve.

         22  You're happy with the performance, and yet the

         23  Department wants to improve, so we want to focus on

         24  the latter statement because that is precisely why

         25  this legislation is being put forth.
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          2                 So I look forward to working with the

          3  Department and the staff and the Committee members

          4  here to push forth this legislation, so that our

          5  constituents will be more comfortable and even

          6  happier with the performance of the DOT with respect

          7  to these priority regulatory signs or at least, at

          8  the very minimum, with regard to the life protecting

          9  devices that you speak of.  Thank you very much.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Thank

         11  you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We have

         13  testimony from Michael Demma.  Go ahead.

         14                 MR. DEMMA:  My name is Michael Demma,

         15  D- E- M- M- A.  I don't have any written testimony

         16  because I'm just a bit much on writing things about

         17  things, and this is simple enough to understand

         18  anyway.  I work for the Transit Authority, but I'm

         19  not an employee there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Take your time,

         21  Michael.

         22                 MR. DEMMA:  Let me take the ginger

         23  out of my mouth, it's better than gum.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is rather

         25  unusual.  Our City Hall camera caught it, but okay.
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          2                 MR. DEMMA:  I'm an employee of the

          3  Transit Authority.  I'm in the Maintenance Division,

          4  Electrical.  I also do some volunteer work at 14th

          5  Street and 6th Avenue.

          6                 Some time ago, I remember a no left

          7  turn sign that was hanging, and I remember making

          8  some efforts to call it in to 311 or DOT.  The

          9  response was, we'll get there.  This sign was

         10  hanging perpendicular, rather than vertical, to the

         11  lamp post that it was hanging on.  It was hanging by

         12  one hinge.  One hinge was broken, and it was

         13  sideways like this.

         14                 I called up 311, and DOT said they'll

         15  be there as soon as possible.  I didn't know what as

         16  soon as possible was, but it was still hanging there

         17  several days later.  I called up again, and they

         18  said that it would be fixed as soon as possible.

         19  Well, what is the average time for this sign to be

         20  straightened out and put back on two hinges rather

         21  than flopping around in the wind on one hinge?  They

         22  said six to nine days for this no left turn sign,

         23  which is two feet by three feet aluminum sheet.

         24                 There was how many hundreds of people

         25  who were walking past 14th Street at any given time
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          2  that this thing could have fell on somebody, slice

          3  somebody's head open at any particular time.  So I

          4  was surprised to hear it's not an immediate response

          5  when someone calls in there's a hanging sign or a

          6  hanging lamp post or a stop sign for even, because

          7  this is so important.

          8                 In the Transit Authority, as my

          9  position leads me to do the work, when we get an

         10  electrical part, when we get a problem such as

         11  smoking fixture or a hanging fixture or hanging

         12  wires anywhere in the system, we have a 24/7

         13  response, and we're usually there as commanded by a

         14  six wire response where there would have been less

         15  than two hours on most conditions.  So we're

         16  obligated to be there to make repairs, secure the

         17  condition and if there's further repairs that are

         18  needed on a larger scale, we have to write a report

         19  to say that further work needs to be done.

         20                 So as far as the six to nine days to

         21  correct something of a hanging stop sign by one

         22  hinge, I believe is a bit much, and possibly there

         23  could be some correction in that area. That would be

         24  it.  So in connection to my response as an

         25  electrician, we have to be in less than two hours
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          2  for anything that we're commanded to.  Hopefully,

          3  that could be helpful.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Demma.  So are you happy with the Department of

          6  Transportation's performance with regard to the

          7  replacement or repair of these signs?

          8                 MR. DEMMA:  This one particular sign

          9  that I called in some time ago, I was really

         10  surprised that it takes six to nine days for a no

         11  left turn sign hanging 25 feet on the post to be

         12  responded in six to nine days.  That should have

         13  been at least a two hour response at best.  To be

         14  honest, that was disappointing to hear that.

         15                 Not too long thereafter, I saw a

         16  hanging fixture near 1st Avenue and 4th Avenue, a

         17  street light fixture.  Rather than going through 311

         18  again, I think I knocked on the Fire Department's

         19  door and said, listen you got a hanging fixture over

         20  there, any chance of correcting that problem, and

         21  they were happy enough to open up their doors and

         22  let the fire truck out and take this fixture down

         23  that was hanging.  So does he want to talk to me

         24  directly, that fellow?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, that's fine.
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          2  We certainly appreciate your testimony as always,

          3  Mr. Demma.

          4                 MR. DEMMA:  I'm sure there's room.

          5  The money is not the issue as far as allocating an

          6  emergency response.  It just has to allocate command

          7  power accordingly, 24/7.  Cars and trucks and buses

          8  and people are moving 24/7 in this town.  It has to

          9  be adjusted accordingly.  Less than 48 hours, two

         10  hours, six hours at best, immediate, immediate

         11  response, stop signs, hanging signs, serious

         12  tripping hazards.  That's about it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Any questions by

         14  Council Members for Mr. Demma?  Thanks for taking

         15  the time out to come down to the hearing.

         16                 MR. DEMMA:  My pleasure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thanks.  Okay,

         18  well, there are no other witnesses.  Would any

         19  Council Members like to say anything or put forth

         20  any motions?  Okay, well, that being the case, then

         21  there being no further witnesses, this hearing of

         22  the City Council's Committee on Transportation is

         23  adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 2:00 p.m.)
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